THESIS FOR THE DEGREE OF LICENTIATE OF ENGINEERING

Microstructural characterization of Haynes 282 after heat treatment and forging

Ceena Joseph

Department of Materials and Manufacturing Technology CHALMERS UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY Göteborg, Sweden, 2015

Microstructural characterization of Haynes 282 after Heat Treatment and Forging.

Ceena Joseph

© Ceena Joseph, 2015

ISSN 1652-8891 Technical Report No. 101/2015

Department of Materials and Manufacturing Technology Chalmers University of Technology SE-412 96 Göteborg Sweden Tel: +46 (0)31 772 1310 Fax: +46 (0)31 772 1313

Printed by Chalmers Reproservice Göteborg, Sweden 2015 To My little *Adina*

Microstructural characterization of Haynes 282 after heat treatment and forging

Ceena Joseph

Department of Materials and Manufacturing Technology Chalmers University of Technology

Abstract

Over the past 75 years, solid-solution strengthened superalloys have been one among the most widely used materials for long term applications at elevated temperatures. The combination of properties such as high temperature strength, resistance to oxidation and corrosion, fabricability, and creep strength make them an unusual class of materials, attracting researchers and scientists to explore its full potential. Among this group, the nickel superalloys find wide applications in aero engines and land-based gas turbines. They are still being modified in chemical composition to meet the increasing demands of aircraft and energy producing industry. One such newly developed Ni-base alloy is Haynes 282.

Haynes 282 showed sensitivity to heat treatment temperatures. The heat treatment temperatures were varied around the conventional heat treatment and within the typical tolerance limits. The microstructural development was systematically studied at intermediate stages through microscopy. To understand the influence of microstructural change on mechanical properties tensile testing was performed at room temperature. The gamma prime (γ') morphological change was observed to change from cuboidal to spherical to bimodal in three different heat treatment conditions. The carbide morphology changes from interconnected to discrete morphology. The strength of the material is affected by the size and shape of the cuboidal γ' precipitates, while the ductility at room temperature seem to be affected by interconnected morphology of the carbides at the grain boundaries.

Haynes 282 are used in different forms such as forgings, bars, sheets in component applications. The important aspect of such alloy is to understand the structure/property relations at in-service conditions. Haynes 282 in form of forgings showed ductility variations in short transverse direction (ST) from 24% to 12% as compared to its longitudinal transversal (LT) direction. The lower limit of ductility is close to the design tolerance and thus creates a need to understand the variation in ductility. In this part, the study is focused to understand ductility variation by microscopic investigations. The influence of carbide segregation and banding is seen to influence the ductility when oriented perpendicular to the tensile axis. This influence is also qualitatively captured through micromechanical modelling.

Keywords: Haynes 282, anisotropy ductility, heat treatment, microstructure, gamma prime, carbides

Preface

This licentiate thesis is based on the work performed at the Department of Materials and Manufacturing Technology at Chalmers University of Technology during the period June 2012-June 2015. During this period the work was performed within the project funded by Swedish National Aeronautical Research Program (NFFP6) under the supervision of Professor Christer Persson and Adj.Associate Professor Magnus Hörnqvist.

List of Appended papers

Paper I: Influence of heat treatments on the microstructure and tensile properties of Haynes 282 sheet material

C. Joseph, C. Persson, M. Hörnqvist

In Manuscript

Paper II: Influence of carbide distribution on ductility of Haynes 282 forgings

C. Joseph, M. Hörnqvist, R. Brommesson, C. Persson

In Manuscript

Paper III: Anisotropy of room temperature ductility in Haynes 282 forgings

C. Joseph, M. Hörnqvist, C. Persson

Proceedings at the 8th International Symposium on Superalloy 718 and Derivatives Pittsburgh, USA. October 2014, pp 601-609

Paper not appended to the thesis

3D grain structure modelling of intergranular fracture in forged Haynes 282

R. Brommesson, C. Joseph

Submitted to international journal

Contribution to the appended papers

My contribution to the appended papers

Paper I: The work was planned by me in collaboration with my supervisors. The experimental work was performed by me. Mechanical testing was done by Prof. Christer Persson. The paper was written by me in cooperation with the co-authors

Paper II: The work was planned together with GKN aerospace. I did the microscopy work and the modelling part was done by Rebecka Brommesson. I wrote the paper in cooperation with the co-authors.

Paper III: The work was planned together with GKN aerospace. I did the microscopy work and wrote the paper in cooperation with the co-authors.

Table of Contents

1. Introduction 1
2. Nickel-base superalloys
2.1 Role of alloying elements
2.2 Heat treatment of Ni-base superalloys 4
2.2.1 Carbide precipitation
2.2.2 Gamma prime precipitation
3. Haynes 282- A new fabricable superalloy
3.1 Introduction to Haynes 282
3.2 Basis for current research
3.2.1 Issues with heat treatment
3.2.2 Anisotropic ductility
3.3 Research Objectives
4. Experimental details
4.1 Material11
4.2 Heat treatment
4.3 Test methods11
4.3.1 Mechanical Testing11
4.3.2 Hardness
4.3.3 Microscopy
5. Results
5.1 Heat treatment on Haynes 282 sheet
5.2. Ductility in forgings15
5.3 Summary of appended papers
5.3.1 Paper 1
5.3.2 Paper 2 and 3
6. Suggestions for future work
Acknowledgement
References

1. Introduction

After the World War II, the gas turbines became an important technology for its application in land based power generation, aircraft industry and other industrial processes [1,2] The materials that were used earlier in the engine construction could not survive more than few hundred hours at high temperatures. This created the need for developing the new alloys to meet the demand for increased performance, reliability and emission in gas turbines.

Gas turbine engines deliver mechanical power using liquid fuel. In this process these components are responsible for mixing the air and fuel, create combustion and produce high temperatures up to 1400-1500 °C .This temperature window makes the materials and design for these components very critical for such applications. Thus, such application requires the material to have excellent mechanical strength, resistance to thermal creep deformation and fatigue, good surface stability and resistance to corrosion and oxidation. This unusual class of material, called superalloys, are attractive to scientists and researchers [1-3]. Figure 1 shows the temperature capability of superalloys since the beginning.



Figure 1: Temperature capability of superalloys since year of introduction [1]

Based on the strengthening mechanism superalloys are classified into three groups.

- Nickel base (solid solution strengthening)
- Nickel –iron base (precipitation strengthening)
- Cobalt based (oxide dispersion strengthening)

Among the above, the nickel alloys find wide application in components used in aircraft engines, constituting over 50 % of its weight. The most common components are turbine blades, discs, seals, rings and casings of aero engines. The development of manufacturing processes produces alloy with uniform properties, less defects and less elemental segregation gives the possibility to improve the mechanical properties to a large extent [4]. Thus, the temperature capability of nickel alloys has now been improved considerably.

Outline of the thesis

This thesis focuses on characterizing a relatively new nickel base superalloy Haynes 282, after heat treatment and forging. The organization of this work begins with a general introduction to nickel base superalloy followed by introducing Haynes 282 and the research objectives. Thereafter, the experiment and characterization tools are described briefly. This is followed by discussion about important results, a summary of appended papers and intended future work.

2. Nickel-base superalloys

Nickel base superalloys are solution/precipitation strengthened alloys containing many alloying elements. These are complex engineered materials because they involve precipitation of intermetallic phases, called the gamma prime (γ') and gamma double prime (γ''), and carbides such as MC (rich in Ti and Mo), M₂₃C₆ (rich in Cr) and other carbides like M₆C (rich in Mo) and M₇C₃ [5-11]. The superior strength, high resistance to oxidation and corrosion, and creep properties of these alloys are essentially derived from the presence of these micro constituent phases [5]. The γ' phase is coherent with gamma matrix (γ) and is an important constituent that contributes to the strength, while the carbides are incoherent to the matrix and are present at grain boundaries and intragranularly in the nickel alloys [1]. The alloying elements determine composition of the superalloy while the heat treatment is important for optimizing the properties. Each of them are subsequently discussed in this section.

2.1 Role of alloying elements

The matrix consists principally of Ni, Co, Cr and refractory metal such as Mo; the relative amounts of all these are determined by other elements such as Al, Ti, C and B which react to form precipitating phases. Alloying elements and their importance in nickel base superalloys has been reported widely in literature and is summarized in Table 1. Some of the critical elements such as Al and Ti are important for fabricability [12]. Lower levels of Mo (1 or 2 %) is deleterious as it can affect the creep strength of the material, while a minimum of 15-20 % of Cr is desirable for hot corrosion properties [6].

Element	Amount found in Ni- base/Fe-Ni base alloys (wt%)	Effect
Cr	5-25	Oxidation and hot corrosion resistance;carbides; solution hardening
Mo-W	0-12	Carbides solution hardening
Al-Ti	0-6	Precipitation hardening; carbides
С	0.02-0.10	Form carbides
Со	0-20	Affects amount of precipitate, raises γ^\prime solvus
Ni	rest	Stabilizes austenite; forms hardening precipitates
Та	0-12	Carbides; solution hardening; oxidation resistance
Nb	0-4	Carbides; solution hardening; precipitation hardening

Table 1. Role of alloying elements in nickel alloys.

2.2 Heat treatment of Ni-base superalloys

Microstructure is basic to attain property requirement in superalloys [13]. The relation between microstructure and resulting mechanical properties is widely studied in both wrought and cast superalloys [14-28]. To derive its high temperature strength, and properties during in-service conditions, it is essential to control the microstructure via use of precipitated phases [14].

Ni-base superalloys are normally supplied in solution treated condition because they have optimum combination of properties for room temperature fabrication and elevated temperature service. However, by heat treatment it is possible to achieve

- Precipitation hardening
- Desired precipitation of carbide
- Optimum grain size through grain growth (in wrought and cast alloys), and through recrystallization and grain growth along with mechanical deformation (forging)

Figure 2 shows a schematic sketch for heat treatment in general for superalloys.



Figure 2. Schematic sketch of heat treatment steps in superalloys

In case of wrought Ni-base superalloy, solution treatment is performed to dissolve nearly all γ' and carbides other than the stable MC carbides. Typical solution treatments are in the range of 1050 to 1200 °C followed by either air cooling or water quenching. On quenching super saturated solid solution is formed. The following two-step aging is done to precipitate γ' ; the first often being carbide stabilization while the second for completing the precipitation of γ' .

In order to achieve desired properties, the heat treatment process has to be optimized. Factors such as cooling rate [15], aging temperatures and time [18], and solutionizing temperatures [25] are some of the heat treatment parameters that can alter the morphology of precipitated phases and thereby affect the properties of these alloys.

2.2.1 Carbide precipitation

One of the basic mechanisms for strengthening of wrought Ni-base alloy is carbide precipitation. The type of carbides formed depends on the alloying elements, while its morphology and distribution is affected by heat treatment. The temperatures and time for carbide precipitation are often carefully considered because these carbides undergo complex reactions, which can generate detrimental and beneficial effects by either changing to different forms of carbides or by changing their morphology. Carbides present at the grain boundaries in a desired morphology exhibit good creep strength and ductility, by inhibiting grain boundary sliding [5, 29].

Since carbide precipitation and distribution is very important in Ni-base alloy, the influence of carbide morphologies, type and distribution to high temperature properties has been studied and reported in the literature [28-49]. The three main forms of carbides reported in literature for Ni-base alloys are MC, $M_{23}C_6$ and M_6C . (Where M stands for metallic element) Table 2 shows the different morphologies of carbides formed in Ni-base alloys.

Carbides	Morphology
MC (Ti and Mo rich)	Blocky, discrete, script
M ₆ C(Mo rich)	Discrete, acicular, platelets
$M_{23}C_6(Cr rich)$	Film, blocky, cellular, zipper

 Table 2. Morphology of different carbides in Ni-base alloys

MC carbides are formed at higher temperatures during melting. They are generally insoluble carbides which precipitate in irregular shape and are believed not to influence the properties unless they are segregated [38, 48]. On thermal exposure, the carbides can undergo decomposition to form different stabilized states.

$$MC + \gamma \rightarrow M_6C + \gamma'$$

 $MC + \gamma \rightarrow M_{23}C_6 + \gamma'$

 M_6C form of carbides is formed in the intermediate temperature range and enhance the property of the material only if present in desired discrete morphology. They are generally preferred instead of $M_{23}C_6$ form of carbides, because of their stability at higher temperatures. [37]

 $M_{23}C_6$ usually precipitates at the grain boundaries in chromium rich alloys as irregular and discontinuous particles at temperatures between 760-980 °C. Continuous films of carbides can affect the ductility and, stress rupture of the material are avoided in this form [20, 31].

2.2.2 Gamma prime precipitation

Gamma prime precipitate is the principal strengthening phase in Ni-base alloys. The γ' precipitation is generally formed during cooling from the first aging step or during the second aging [29]. Temperature, time and cooling rates on heat treatment can affect γ' precipitation [50-53]. The morphology, distribution and volume fraction of γ' plays a very important role not only for strength but also for determining its fabricability [5, 12]. They are seen as cuboidal and spherical morphologies in different Ni-base alloys. The principal alloying elements that form these precipitates are Al and Ti. The γ' strengthened alloys have increased need for easy fabricability so that it can be readily welded and formed into various shapes. Hence, their addition is carefully balanced in order to get better fabricability and optimum hardening [29].

3. Haynes 282- A new fabricable superalloy

3.1 Introduction to Haynes 282

Haynes 282, is a relatively new wrought γ' strengthened alloy which has been attracting interests for various applications due to a combination of properties like creep strength, thermal stability and fabricability [12,54]. The chemical composition of this alloy is as shown in Table 3.

Ni	Cr	Со	Мо	Ti	Al	Fe	Mn	Si	С	В
Bal	19.44	10.22	9.42	2.15	1.44	0.92	0.06	0.07	0.067	0.004

Ta	ble	3.	Chemical	Composition	(wt	%)0	of Haynes	282 alloy
					· ·			

The conventional heat treatment of this alloy is 1010 °C/2h/aircooled (AC) and 788 °C/8h/AC. As shown in Figure 3, the conventionally heat treated alloy has spherical γ' precipitates and discrete carbide morphology at the grain boundaries.



(a)

(b)

Figure 3. Scanning electron microscope (SEM) images of conventional heat treated Haynes 282 alloy showing (a) carbides (b) γ'

Haynes 282, since introduction into the market for high temperature applications, has been explored for its full potential. The studies on Haynes 282 include the oxidation and corrosion behavior, weldability, creep and fatigue on conventionally heat treated condition [54-57]. However, the effect of heat treatment parameters such as temperature, time and cooling rate is under research.

3.2 Basis for current research

3.2.1 Issues with heat treatment

In the interest to explore high temperature fatigue life of this new material, first part of the project was aimed at studying the low cycle fatigue behavior. However, in this process it was found that Haynes 282 had lower yield strength and shorter fatigue life at higher temperature than expected. Characterization of the tested specimen showed differences in carbide morphology at the grain boundaries. As shown in

Figure 3 (a), the alternative heat treatment, shows presence of grain boundary carbides as films, while in the conventional heat treatment it appears as blocky (brick wall) structure.



Figure 4. SEM images showing (a) Grain boundary carbides with film morphology, tested for fatigue at higher temperature (alternative heat treatment) (b) Grain boundary carbides with blocky morphology (conventional heat treatment)

Additionally, we see bimodal γ' precipitates intragranularly, and γ' precipitates and discrete carbides at the grain boundary. As shown in Figure 5 (a), alternative heat treatment shows presence of bimodal γ' precipitates and γ' at the grain boundaries. While, in the conventional heat treatment, as shown in Figure 5(b), we see uniform size of γ' precipitates intragranularly and grain boundary with discrete carbides.



Figure 5. SEM image showing presence of (a) bimodal precipitation in alternative heat treatment (b) Spherical γ' prime precipitates.

Due to lack of enough literature on heat treatment and indications that the material is sensitive to heat treatment parameters, the first part of this project was aimed to understand the microstructural development of Haynes 282. The important aspect of this study was aimed to correlate the microstructural changes to mechanical properties like tensile strength and ductility at room temperature.

3.2.2 Anisotropic ductility

Second part of the work focuses in understanding the ductility variations in Haynes 282 forgings after heat treatment. In this study we had the possibility to see microstructures of Haynes 282 forgings, bars and sheets. The grain size, and distribution of carbides in different forms are shown in Figure 6. In Figure 6(a), the forgings indicate presence of banded structure, with bimodal distribution of grain size and carbide stringers. In case of bar, the grain size is uniform with carbides uniformly distributed, see Figure 6(b). While, as shown in Figure 6(c), sheets show presence of carbide stringers in the rolling direction with uniformity in grain size. The mechanical test results on forging shows ductility variation

from 12 % to 24 % in the short transversal direction, while in the longitudinal direction it was unaffected. While, in case of sheets and bars, the ductility shows variations with heat treatment adopted.



Figure 6. Optical microstructures of Haynes 282 (a) forging (b) bar (c) sheet

3.3 Research Objectives

1. To understand the microstructural development in Haynes 282 and its sensitivity to heat treatment affecting the room temperature tensile properties.

2. To identify the cause for variation in ductility of Haynes 282 forgings and sheets.

4. Experimental details

4.1 Material

As discussed in Chapter 3, the material used in this study is Haynes 282. The heat treatments were done on mill annealed sheets of 3 mm thickness, and with grain size ASTM 3.5. In the course of anisotropic study we also had the possibility to check on other forms such as forgings and bars of Haynes 282.

4.2 Heat treatment

The Haynes 282 sheet, as received, was heat treated in air in a chamber furnace. The sheet was cut into small pieces before subjecting it to heat treatment schedules mentioned in Table 4.

Referred as	Solution treatment	Aging step 1	Aging step 2
Solution treatment +	1120 C/2hr (WQ*)	1010 C/2hr (FC**)	788 C /8hr (FC)
aging (ST+A)			
Mill annealed +	-	1010 C/2hr (FC)	788 C /8hr (FC)
aging (MA+A)			
Mill annealed + low	-	996 C/2hr (FC)	788 C /8hr (FC)
temperature aging			
(MA+LTA)			

Table 4: Heat treatment schedules

*WQ- water quenched ** FC – furnace cooled

While, the anisotropy ductility study was done on forged specimens, heat treated according to AMS4951.

4.3 Test methods

4.3.1 Mechanical Testing

Tensile specimens were cut by water jet cutting and the room temperature testing was done in MTS servo hydraulic machine as per the ASTM standard E8

Forgings: The tensile testing was done by GKN aerospace as per the ASTM standard E8

4.3.2 Hardness

Hardness measurement were performed to determine the aging of material. The Vickers macrohardness test was done at 10kg load as per the ASTM standard E92, and the reported values in thesis are an average of 10 indentations.

4.3.3 Microscopy

A Leitz DMRX light optical microcopy equipped with Axio-vision software was used to study the microstructure on polished and etched samples. Additionally, SEM LEO 1550 was used for fractographic analysis and to observe the γ' precipitates and carbide morphology under different heat treated condition

5. Results

5.1 Heat treatment on Haynes 282 sheet

In order to study the sensitivity of Haynes 282 to heat treatment temperatures and to understand its subsequent impact on room temperature properties, the heat treatment schedules as shown in Table 4 were done on mill annealed specimens.

After heat treatment, the carbide morphologies at the grain boundaries changed. Figure 7 shows the different morphologies of grain boundary carbides. Figure 7(a) shows occasional presence of discrete grain boundary carbides in as received condition. On additional solutionizing followed by conventional heat treatment (ST+A), grain boundary shows interconnected morphology (Figure 7(b)). While, in MA+A condition, grain boundary carbides have discrete morphology, see Figure 7(c). However, as compared to ST+A and MA+A conditions, MA+LTA shows discrete grain boundary carbides and γ' precipitates (cf. Figure 7(d)).



Figure 7. SEM images showing difference in carbide morphologies at the grain boundaries in different conditions (a) Carbides in as received condition: occasional presence of discrete grain boundary carbides (b) ST+A condition: presence of interconnected grain boundary carbides (c) MA+A condition: discrete grain boundary carbides (d) MA+LTA condition: discrete grain boundary carbides.

Additionally, γ' etching also showed morphological changes, as seen in Figure 8. Figure 8(a) shows no presence of γ' in as received condition. In ST+A i.e. additional solutionizing followed by conventional

heat treatment γ' precipitates are seen with cuboidal morphology (Figure 8(b)). While, MA+A shows presence of fine spherical γ' , see Figure 7(c). However, as compared to other conditions, MA+LTA shows bimodal γ' precipitates (cf. Figure 7(d)), spherical and cuboidal morphology.



Figure 8. SEM images showing difference in carbide morphologies at the grain boundaries in 4 different conditions (a) As received condition: No γ' seen (b) ST+A condition: cuboidal $\gamma'(c)MA+A$ condition: spherical $\gamma'(d)$ MA+LTA condition: bimodal γ' precipitates (small-spherical and coarse-cuboidal).

The morphological changes in grain boundary carbides and γ' precipitate, were tested for its impact on room temperature tensile properties and hardness. The tensile test results along with hardness and morphological changes in γ' is summarized in Table 5.

Heat treatment condition	Room temperature				Hardness (HV)	γ´ morphology
	0.2% YS(MPa)	UTS(MPa)	%El	%RA		
As received					212 ± 4	
ST+A	650	1100±10	16±1	14	310 ± 6	Cubic (120nm)
MA+A	760±8	1245±10	32±1	33	358 ± 8	Spherical (20-30nm)
MA+LTA	765±8	1255±10	32±1	34	327 ± 6	Bimodal(cubic+spherical) (120nm+ 20nm)

Table 5: Room temperature tensile results and hardness for different heat treated conditions.

As seen in Table 5, the strength in ST+A condition is lower as compared to other heat treatments. From literature it is evident that γ' precipitation gives strength to the material. A change in size of γ' precipitates to coarse cuboidal morphology of 120 nm is affecting its room temperature YS and UTS. However, in MA+A- and MA+LTA- conditions, strength levels are similar.

The elongation is affected in ST+A condition and can be considered to be the effect of interconnected morphology of carbides at grain boundaries. The discrete carbide morphology does not affect the tensile ductility in MA+A and MA+LTA conditions, which is a consistent with observations reported in literature. Hardness values are high for MA+A condition with fine spherical γ' as compared to the coarse cuboidal precipitates in ST+A condition. However, the bimodal precipitate morphology for MA+LTA shows hardness in between the two conditions.

5.2. Ductility in forgings

In the ductility of forgings study, mechanical test on specimens from Haynes 282 forgings, shows similar values for YS, while their ductility and to some extent UTS changed. In this section, observations from representative samples are discussed. The fractography of tensile test specimens show intergranular failure as seen in Figure 9. Figure 9(a), shows a sample with intergranular failure and Figure 9(b) with presence of cracked MC carbide at grain boundaries, and presence of dimpled features on fractured surface indicating ductile matrix.



(a)

(b)

Figure 9. Fractographs of tensile specimen showing (a) Intergranular failure (b) Presence of dimpled features, intergranular failure and cracked MC carbide at the grain boundary.



Figure 10. Fractographs showing presence of segregated carbides (a) M_6C carbides (b) MC carbides

The fracture surface also showed presence of segregated M_6C and MC carbides as shown in Figure 10. In order to understand the segregation of carbides and their distribution, longitudinal sections of specimens were cut, polished and etched for microscopy. Figure 11(a) shows the longitudinal section of a sample just below the fracture surface, indicating cracks along a segregated carbide region. A region with segregated carbides, shows presence of M_6C , MC carbides and carbo nitrides, as seen in Figure 9(b). These stringers were observed to be either 90 °, inclined or along the tensile axis direction in investigated specimens.



Figure 11. SEM images of longitudinal section of fractured specimen showing (a) Cracks in carbides just below the fracture surface (b) Segregation of carbides within a band of carbide stringer (c) MC carbides as large as the smaller grains. Presence of a crack in MC carbide at grain boundary

Figure 11(c) shows carbides of size almost similar to the size of smaller grains. As shown in Figure 12, γ' precipitates are seen to be distributed uniformly in matrix. Figure 12(a) shows presence of bimodal distribution of γ' ; coarse- intragranularly, and fine close to grain boundaries. It also shows presence of cracked MC carbide at the grain boundary. While, in one of the forgings heat treated conventionally, γ' is uniformly distributed in size and shape intragranularly and near grain boundaries, see Figure 12(b).



Figure 12. SEM images showing (a) Uniform distribution of spherical γ' and crack in MC carbide at the grain boundary in forging (heat treated according to AMS 5951) (b) Distribution of very fine γ' near grain boundary and intragranularly (conventional heat treatment).





The optical microscopy of specimen shows presence of smaller grains in regions where carbide segregations are observed while regions outside of carbide segregation are coarse grains, see Figure 13. Figure 13(a) is an optical image from a specimen in ST direction from forging, and measured ductility of 12 %. The carbide distribution were seen 90 $^{\circ}$ to the tensile axis (black). In Figure 13(b), a specimen with 16 % elongation shows presence of carbide stringers along the tensile axis direction. While specimens from LT direction had uniformly distributed carbides along the tensile axis direction, see Figure 14.



Figure 14. Optical microscopic image showing the carbide stringer and bimodal distribution of grains in specimens from LT direction with 24 % elongation: showing carbides uniformly distributed in the matrix along the tensile axis direction (black arrow)

5.3 Summary of appended papers

This section is aimed to summarize the results in appended papers. Paper 1 deals with the heat treatment on Haynes 282 sheet material. Paper 2 and Paper 3 are about forgings studied for their anisotropic ductility through microscopic investigation.

5.3.1 Paper 1

In this study, Haynes 282 shows sensitivity to heat treatment temperatures by forming different morphologies of grain boundary carbides and γ' precipitates as seen in Figure 7 and Figure 8 respectively. The conventional heat treatment for Haynes 282 (1010 °C/2h/AC) and (788 °C/8h/AC) produces a microstructure with fine γ' precipitates as shown in Figure 3.

For the standard heat treatment (i.e. MA+A condition), the γ' precipitates were fine and of spherical morphology. Additional solutionizing (i.e. ST+A) leads to an increase in size of γ' precipitates, and an associated change to cuboidal shape, which lowers the YS and UTS of the material. The change to cuboidal morphology, could be due to the fact that longer solutionzing time at 1120 °C, reduced the density of dislocations after recovery process which has led to fewer nucleation points and coarser precipitates. By reducing the temperature to 996 °C during the first aging step (i.e. MA+LTA), a bimodal distribution of γ' with two different morphologies was observed – small spherical and large cuboidal. This is because 996 °C is below the γ' solvus temperature for Haynes 282, and hence nucleates γ' precipitates at this temperature and on further cooling they grow to cuboidal shape. On subsequent aging at lower temperatures further nucleation of smaller γ' with spherical morphology occurs.

When adding the solutionizing step, the grain boundary carbide changes from discrete particulate morphology seen after standard treatment, to an interconnected structure, which led to a significant drop in room temperature tensile ductility. The secondary carbides are brittle and being interconnected makes it even more detrimental. On cracking of grain boundary carbides, its interconnected morphology further accelerates the crack propagation thereby leading to premature failure. On lower ageing temperature, produced a mix of carbide and γ' at the grain boundaries, but the secondary carbides still seen with their discrete morphology and therefore does not affect the room temperature tensile properties. Thus this

study shows that slight variations in aging temperature influence mechanical properties due to microstructural changes.

5.3.2 Paper 2 and 3

In this study, tensile test results show that ductility changes from 12 % to 24 %. The fractography shows intergranular failure and presence of segregated MC and M_6C carbides which are brittle, see Figure 9 and 10. Metallographic investigations show presence carbide stringers and bimodal grain size distribution. Figures 13 and 14 show preferential orientation of the carbide bands with respect of tensile axis direction.

The γ' precipitates are uniformly distributed in size and morphology, so the heat treatment adopted gives similar YS. While, UTS also shows anisotropy to some extent. The formation of carbide stringers during forging and subsequent heat treatment is due to local elemental segregation in the ingot. The MC and M₆C carbides are brittle. These brittle carbides initiates and propagates crack under loading conditions. They also pin the grain boundaries and gives bimodal grain size distribution. The preferential alignment of carbide stringers and bimodal distribution are the microstructural inhomogeneity, which influences the measured tensile ductility. Measured ductility is thus anisotropic and inhomogeneous due to the preferential orientation of carbide stringers, which is also qualitatively confirmed in the modelling attempt, where the orientation of carbides 45 ° to the tensile axis shows maximum ductility as compared to that inclined at 90°.

6. Suggestions for future work

From the heat treatment and forging study we see that Haynes 282 is sensitive to heat treatment temperatures, which changes both carbide morphologies and γ' precipitation. The microstructural changes are also seen to affect the room temperature properties. Therefore, we aim to develop a better understanding on the microstructural development by varying few heat treatment parameters such as:

- Solutionizing temperature, time and cooling rate
- Aging temperature, time and cooling rate

And also to study their effects on room and high temperature mechanical properties like strength, ductility both at room temperature and high temperature.

We also aim to understand the secondary carbides formed at grain boundaries and their influence ductility.

Acknowledgement

I would like to express my sincere thanks to

-My supervisor Prof. Christer Persson and co-supervisor .Adj. Associate Professor Magnus Hörnqvist for all their support and guidance all this while and for continued encouragement to be determined with this work.

-GKN aerospace for introducing me to the world of superalloys and Haynes 282.

-Bengt Pettersson, Frank Skystedt and Johan Tholerus at GKN aerospace for their active participation in getting this thesis all this way and for sharing their experience and knowledge on Haynes 282.

-Kenneth Hamberg, Eric Tam, Roger Sagdahl, Gustav Holmqvist, Yiming Yao, Peter Sotkovsky, Håkan Millqvist for their help with technical issues and with experimental techniques.

-My colleagues at the Department of Materials and Manufacturing technology for a friendly work environment.

-My friends Zubair, Rashmi, Aditi and Ajay for all their support and encouragement, and to keep me motivated every now and then.

-My husband Anoop, my parents and parents-in-law for always being a source of help, support and encouragement.

-Last but not the least *Thanking GOD Almighty* for all the strength and courage that I have had to face situations on a positive note.

"Sometimes the Bad Things that happen in our lives put us directly on the path to the Best things that will ever happen to us " \odot

References

- 1. Roger C Reed, *The Superalloys Fundamentals and Applications*, Cambridge University Press, (2008).
- 2. R.F.Smith et al., *Development and application of nickel alloys in aerospace engineering*, Aircraft engineering and aerospace technology, Vol 73, Issue 2, 2001,pp 138-146
- 3. T.M.Pollock, Nickel based superalloys for advanced turbine engines: Chemistry, microstructure and properties, Journal of Propulsion and power, Vol22,No2, 2006, pp361-374
- 4. R.N.Ghosh, *Superaloly:Processing and performance*, Report(National metallurgical laboratory, India), pp97-106
- 5. C.T.Sims, A contemporary view of Nickel-base superalloys, Journal of Metals, 1966, pp1119-1130
- 6. J.Chander, *The hardening mechanism and corrosion resistance of nickel-base alloys A review*, Canadian Metallurgical Quarterly, Vol 3, No.1;1964,pp 57-77
- 7. J.C.Zhao et al., *The thermodynamic prediction of Phase stability in multicomponent superalloys*, Journal of metals, 2002,pp37-41
- 8. M.Kaufman et al., *The Phase structure of Inconel 718 and 802 alloys*, Transactions of the metallurgical society of AIME, Vol 221, 1961,pp 1253-62
- 9. C.H.Lund et al., *Identification of Microconstituents present in superalloys*, Defense metals information center, 1962,pp 1-22
- 10. G.P.Sabol et al., *Microstructure of Nickel based superalloys*, Phys. Stat.Sol. 35, 11 (1969), pp 11-52
- 11. P.S.Kotval, The microstructure of Superalloys, Metallography, 1,1969,pp251-285
- 12. L. Pike, *Haynes 282 alloy a new wrought superalloy designed for improved creep strength and fabricability*, Proceedings of the ASME Turbo Expo 4 ,2006,pp 1031-1039.
- 13. D.R.Muzyka, *Controlling microstructures and properties of superalloys via use of precipitated phases*, Metals engineering quarterly, 1971, pp 12-19
- 14. D.L.Kalstrom et al., Structure property relationship in solid solution strengthened superalloys, Superalloys, 1984, pp 553-562
- A.R.P.Singh et al., Influence of cooling rate on the development of multiple generations of γ' precipitates in a commercial nickel base superalloy, Materials characterization, Vol 62,2011,pp 878-886
- 16. J.R.Mihalisin et al., *Microstructural study of the response of a complex superalloy to heat treatment*, Transactions of the metallurgical society of AIME, Vol 215, 1959, pp 912-916
- 17. H.J.Murphy et al., *Long time structures and properties of Three high strength, nickel base alloys*, Transactions of the metallurgical society of AIME, Vol 239, 1978, pp 1961-67
- 18. W.Betteridge et al., *The effect of heat-treatment and structure on the creep and stress-rupture properties of Nimonic 80A*, Journal of the Institute of metals, Vol 85, 1956,pp 473-479
- 19. E.Balikci et al., *Influence of various heat treatments on the microstructure of polycrystalline IN738LC*, Metallurgical and Materials Transactions A , Vol 28A ,1996, pp 1993-2003
- 20. A.Wisniewski et al., *Influence of grain-boundary morphology on creep of a wrought Ni-base superalloy*, Materials science of Engineering A , 510-511 ,2009,pp 266-272
- 21. J.Radavich et al., *Effect of processing and composition on the structure and properties of P/M* EP741NP Type Alloys, Chinese Journal of Aeronautics ,20,2007,pp 097-106
- 22. G.Bai et al., *Effect of temperature on tensile behavior of Ni-Cr-W based superalloy*, Materials science and engineering A ,528,2011,pp 1974-1978
- 23. Z.W.Lian et al., *Temperature dependence of tensile behavior of Ni-based superalloy M951*, Materials science and engineering A, 489, 2008, pp 227-233

- 24. X.G.Wang et al., *Tensile behaviors and deformation mechanisms of a nickel-base single crystal superalloy at different temperatures*, Materials Science and Engineering A, 2013,pp 1-21
- 25. P.R.S.A e Silva et al., *Solution heat-treatment of Nb-modified MAR-M247 superalloy*, Materials characterization, 75, 2013 pp 214-219
- 26. J.Li et al., *Effect of heat treatment on microstructure and mechanical properties of laser melting deposited Ni-base superalloy Rene 41*, Materials science and engineering A, 550, 2012, pp 97-102.
- 27. W.P.Danei, et al., *Phase reaction s in B-1900 Nickel.Base alloy from 1600 to 1800 F*, Transactions of American society of metals, Vol59, 1966, pp 505-516.
- 28. F.Torster et al., Influence of grain sized and heat treatment on the microstructure and mechanical properties of the nickel-base superalloy U720 LI, Materials science and engineering A234-236, 1997,pp 189-192
- 29. E.G.Richards, Factors influencing the stability of nickel-base high temperature alloys, pp 1-23
- 30. J.F.Radavich et al., A study of phase reactions in a complex 4.5Al-3.5Ti –Ni Base alloy, Advances in X-Ray Analysis, 1961, pp 233-245
- 31. H.E.Collins, *Relative stability of carbide and intermetallic phases in nickel base superalloys*, 1968, pp 171-198
- 32. H.E.Collins et al., *Carbide and intermetallic Instability in Advanced Nickel –Base Superalloys*, Transactions of the ASM, Vol61, 1968 pp 139-148
- 33. R.M.Kearsery eta al., *Microstructural effects on the mechanical properties of ATI718Plus Alloy*, Journal of metals, 64, 2012,pp 241-251
- 34. X.Dong et al., *Microstructure of carbides at grain boundaries in nickel based superalloys*, Journal of Material science and Technology A, 28(11), 2012, pp 1031-1038
- 35. Y.Feng Shi et al, *Effect of melt superheating on the morphology of MC carbide in a Cast Nibase Superalloy M963*, Journal of Wuhan University of Technology, 17(3), 2002, pp 42-45
- 36. C.P.Sullivan et al., Some effects of microstructure on the mechanical properties of nickel base superalloys, National metal congress, 1966, pp 1-29
- 37. S.Fox et al., *Influence of carbides on the mechanical properties on Inconel 718*, Proceedings of the 7th International Conference on the Strength of Metals and Alloys, Montreal, Canada, 12–16 August 1985, Vol 1, pp 399-404
- 38. L.Liu et.al, *Effect of solidification conditions on MC carbides in a nickel-base superalloy IN738LC*, Scripta Metallurgica et Materialia, 30, 1994,pp 587-591
- 39. J.Yang, et al., *Relative stability of carbides and their effects on the properties of K465 superalloy*, Materials science and engineering A 429 (2006),pp 341-347
- 40. J.M.Larson, *Carbide morphology in P/M IN 792*, Metallurgical transactions A, Vol 7A, 1976, pp 1497-1502
- 41. J.Chen et al., *MC carbide formation in directionally solidified MAR-M247 LC superalloy*, Materials science and engineering A 247, 1998, pp 113-125
- 42. X.Z.Qin et al., *Decomposition of primary MC carbide and its effect on the fracture behaviors of a cast Ni-base superalloy*, Material science and Engineering A, 485,2008,pp 74-79
- 43. B.G.Choi et al., *Temperature dependence of MC decomposition behavior in Ni-Base superalloy GTD 111*, Materials science and Engineering A, 478, 2008, pp 329-335.
- 44. G.Bai et al., *Effect of thermal exposure on the stability of carbides in Ni-Cr-W based superalloy*, Materials Science and Engineering A ,528 ,2011, pp 2339-2344
- 45. L.Jiang, et al., *The effect of M23C6 carbides on the formation of grain boundary serrations in a wrought Ni-based superalloy*, Materials Science and Engineering A, 536,2011,pp 37-44
- 46. R.Hu et al., *Precipitation behavior of grain boundary M23C6 and its effect on tensile properties* of Ni-Cr-W based superalloy, Materials Science and Engineering A ,548 ,2012,pp 83-88
- 47. A.J.Wasson et al., *The effect of carbide morphologies on elevated temperature tensile and fatigue behavior of a modified single crystal Ni-Base superalloy*, Proceeding at conference ,Superalloy 2008,pp 489-497

- 48. Yu.Zhu-huan et al., *Effect of solidification rate on MC type carbide morphology in single crystal Ni-base superalloy AM3*, Trans.Nonferrous Met. Soc.China ,20,2010,pp 1835-1840
- 49. Q.Z.Chen, Effect of alloying chemistry on MC carbide morphology in modified RR2072 and RR2086 SX superalloys, Scripta Materialia, 47(2002) 669-675
- 50. A.R.P.Singh et al, Mechanisms related to different generations of γ' precipitation during continuous cooling of a nickel base superalloy, Acta Materialia, 61,2013,pp 280-293
- 51. S.Zhao et al., Gamma prime coarsening and age-hardening behaviors in a new nickel base superalloy, Materials Letters, 58, 2004, pp 1784-1787
- 52. A.M.Ges et al., *Coarsening behavior of a Ni-base superalloy under different heat treatment conditions*, Materials science and engineering A, 458,2007,pp 96-100
- 53. J.Tiley, *Coarsening kinetics of γ' precipitates in the commercial nickel base superalloys Rene* 88DT, Acta Materialia,57, 2009,pp 2538-2549
- 54. L. Pike, *Development of a fabricable gamma-prime strengthened superalloy*, Proceedings of the International Symposium on Superalloys,2008,pp 191-200
- 55. H.White et al., Weldability of Haynes 282 *Alloy for new fabrications and after service exposure*. , Energy Materials, Volume 4,2009, pp 84-91
- 56. http://www.haynesintl.com/pdf/h3173.pdf
- 57. C.J.Boehlert et al., A comparison of the microstructure and creep behavior of cold rolled Haynes 230 alloy and Haynes 282 alloy, Materials science and engineering A, 528, 2011, pp 4888-4898.